






May 7, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 4

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2019

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Evi Buell
Gratton Miller
Ian Montgomery
Jeff Dalling
John Anderson
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

April 2, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

***Motion: Approve the April 2, 2019 Meeting Minutes as presented.

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed. (6-0, Gratton Miller abstained)

I. NEW BUSINESS



May 7, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 4

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution 1-19, containing
amendments to the Atlas Map #12 and the Transportation Component of the City of
Elko Master Plan, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Planning Commission reviewed and initiated the amendment to the City of Elko
Master Plan at its March 5, 2019 meeting and made additional changes to the
amendments at their April 2, 2019 meeting.

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained that this was triggered by a subdivision application for a
Stage 1 meeting that was brought to the City of Elko for a subdivision that is on the corner of
Celtic and El Armuth Drive. When staff meets in a Stage 1 they look at all aspects of the
subdivision, including transportation and the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.
There were a couple of properties that were in the County portion of Royal Crest Drive that did
quiet claim deeds and took over possession of what was mapped originally for El Armuth Drive.
El Armuth Drive was not mapped as a dedicated roadway, it was mapped as a parcel in the
original mapping. With the property owners already taking over half of the ownership of the
area, and because of the steep topography, it is nearly impossible for the City to have the
extension of El Armuth Drive from Sagecrest Drive to Celtic Way. Looking at the
Transportation Component of the Master Plan, and proposing this amendment, we are proposing
to eliminate the connection of El Armuth Drive between Sagecrest Drive and Celtic Way, as well
as eliminating the connection between El Armuth Drive to the future frontage road. It would also
be impossible to do that connection because there is a property that the City would have to
acquire in order to do a road connection. It is proposed that El Armuth Drive end at Hondo Lane.
Those are the two proposed changes to the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, had no comments.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, stated that any comments from the Engineering Department had
already been included in the proposed changes.

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, had no comments or concerns.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, had no comments or concerns.

Commissioner Stefan Beck expressed that they didn’t have a packed house, so everything must
be going smoothly.

Chairman Jeff Dalling said they hashed all the issues out at the last meeting.

***Motion: Adopt Resolution 1-19 containing amendments to the Transportation
Component and Atlas Map Number 12 of the City of Elko Master Plan; directing that an
attested copy of the foregoing parts, amendments, extensions of and/or additions to the
Elko City Master Plan be certified to the City Council; further directing that an attested
copy of this Commission’s report on the proposed changes and additions shall have be filed
with the City Council; and recommending to City Council to adopt said amendments by
resolution.



May 7, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 4

Moved by Evi Buell, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (7-0)

B. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

1. Review, consideration, and possible action to initiate an amendment to the City
Zoning Ordinance, specifically Sections 3-2-3 General Provisions and 3-2-2
Definitions, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Ms. Laughlin explained that the Building Codes are being proposed to adopt the 2018
International Building Code, International Residential Code, Etc. With that, we currently have in
the City of Elko Building Code a section on curb, gutter, and sidewalk requirements. Staff feels
that with the proposed adoption of the new codes that the curb, gutter, and sidewalk section
should come out of Building Section and go into the Public Ways Section of the Code. We are
proposing to take the curb, gutter, and sidewalk portion completely out of the Building Code, put
it into Public Ways, and make a reference to it in this Ordinance. We have created this
Ordinance for Section 3-2-3, which is the General Provisions, to add a Section that clearly states
that you might be subject to curb, gutter, and sidewalk regulations per another Section of Code.
A few definitions were updated and added as pertained to curb, gutter, and sidewalk. Ms.
Laughlin then went over the proposed changes.

Commissioner Beck said it sounded like there were not a lot of changes.

Ms. Laughlin explained that they were taking one section out of the Code, moving it to a whole
other Section in the Code, and adding a reference to it in the Zoning Code.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that a comprehensive amendment is being done to the Public Ways
Section of Code, but that doesn’t come to the Planning Commission.

Ms. Rambo added that they are not changing the portion of the Ordinance dealing with curb,
gutter, and sidewalk, they are just moving it.

Mr. Thibault had nothing to add.

Mr. Holmes and Mr. Wilkinson had no comments or concerns.

***Motion: Initiate an amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance, specifically Sections 3-2-
3 General Provisions and 3-2-2 Definitions and direct staff to bring the item back as a
public hearing.

Moved by Gratton Miller, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed unanimously. (7-0)



May 7, 2017 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 4

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that City Council Agendas have been slow. When we don’t have
things on the Planning Commission agenda, then they don’t go to City Council. Great
Basin Estates continues to be tabled, but we are getting some communication. The
Orchard Cove subdivision will be on the next City Council Meeting.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that the RAC had meeting in April. They got two Storefront
Improvement Grant Applications, and they recommended that both of them be approved.
That will go to the RDA in May. At the beginning of the May meeting it will be a joint
meeting with the RAC to present the recognition awards. Once the joint meeting is
adjourned the RDA will move into their meeting. They will have several items on their
agenda. They will be looking at the Storefront Grant Applications and the remaining
funding. They will also be discussing the block end design, and an expenditure for
funding to repaint and freshen up the train in the Train Park. There may also be an
agenda item for the lights in the corridor.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1. 

Created on 5/28/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 4-

19, filed by Elko County School District, which would allow for the expansion of the 

current Elko High School campus with the addition of a new building, and matters 

related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  June 4, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Elko High School is proposing to merge two parcels into 

one and build a new Science building.  Any expansion within the PQP, Public-Quasi, 

Public zoning district requires a Conditional Use Permit. 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit 4-19 based on 

the facts, findings and conditions as presented in Staff Report dated May 20, 2019 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated May 20, 2019. 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Elko County School District 

Mr. Casey Kelly  

850 Elm Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

ckelly@ecsdnv.net 

 

 

 

mailto:ckelly@ecsdnv.net




Page 1 of 7

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

DATE: May 20, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: June 4, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I. A. 1
APPLICATION NUMBER: Conditional Use Permit 4-19
APPLICANT: Elko County School District
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Elko High School Campus, New Science Building
RELATED APPLICATIONS: Variance 1-19, Parcel Map

A Conditional Use Permit for the expansion of the current Elko High School campus with
the addition of a new building.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of facts, conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 2 of 7

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: APN 001-191-001 & 004

PROPERTY SIZE: 14.03 acres combined after approval and recordation
of parcel map combining the two parcels

EXISTING ZONING: PQP –Public, Quasi, Public

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Public

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as the Elko High School campus

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is surrounded by developed land to the north, south, east and west. The
campus is currently zoned PQP, Public, Quasi-Public with R- Single Family and Multiple Family
Residential to the south.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is currently undeveloped on the portion of APN 001-191-004 which is
proposed for the new building.

 The property has moderate topography with slope down toward College Ave.
 The property is currently accessed from 13th Street.
 The property has frontage along College Avenue as well as 13th Street.
 The property is not in the flood zone.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Code 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public District
 City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits
 City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND INFORMATION



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 3 of 7

 The application for the Conditional Use Permit was filed as required under City Code 3-2-
8 (D).

 The applicant has applied for a variance (VAR 1-19) for a reduction in the street line
setback from College Avenue for the new building.

 The applicant is preparing a parcel map to combine both parcels into one parcel. To this
date, the application has been received by the Planning Department but the map has not
been submitted by the surveyor.

 The property is located in the Redevelopment Area.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Public.
2. PQP- Public, Quasi-Public is listed as a corresponding zoning district for Public in the

Master Plan Land Use.
3. Master Plan states that Public land use designation is applied to community and public and

quasi-public uses such as those associated with government, non-profit, and utilities. Uses
of land must comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not
frustrate, the Master Plan’s goals and policies.

4. Objective 3: Strengthen, preserve, and promote the area around the City Park, City Hall,
and Convention Center as the civic heart of the community.

5. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The conditional use permit is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use Component

Transportation

1. The Master Plan identifies College Avenue as a minor arterial.
2. The Master Plan identifies 13th Street as a Commercial/Industrial Collector.
3. The site has pedestrian access along College Avenue, 13th Street an interior network of

sidewalks from parking area to the buildings. Sidewalks are a necessary safety feature,
particularly in residential neighborhoods where children walk to and from the campus.

4. There is no proposed vehicular access from College Avenue to the new building and the
current access off 13th Street will remain as existing.  It is a safer approach having the
access not from the minor arterial.

5. The existing facility meets the goals listed in the Master Plan Transportation document as
Best Practice Objective 1; Provide a balanced transportation system that accommodates
vehicle, bicycles, and pedestrians, while being sensitive to, and supporting the adjacent
land uses.

The conditional use permit is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component
and existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 4 of 7

1. The property is located within the redevelopment area. The proposed use doesn’t provide
tax increment growth but does support several goals and objectives listed in the
Redevelopment Plan.

The proposed conditional use conforms to the Redevelopment Plan.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN

 The property is located in the 30-year capture zone for City wells. Development will be
required to conform to the Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

 Section 3-2-3 (C) City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions shall
apply.

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

1. Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land
is held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason
of flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing
the particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the
right to present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she
so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the
determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed development is required to have an approval as a conditional use to be in
conformance with ECC 3-2-3 as required in ECC 3-2-8(D).

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 5 of 7

The proposed development does not conform with this section of the code and therefore the
applicant has applied for a variance (VAR 1-19) for the street line setback requirement.

SECTION 3-2-8 PQP PUBLIC, QUASI-PUBLIC DISTRICT

1. The intent of the district is to accommodate public or quasi-public institutional uses.

2. Section 3-2-8(D) The establishment, expansion or change of any use, including principal
permitted uses, shall be governed by the conditional use permit procedure, as set forth in
section 3-2-18 of this chapter.

3. Section 3-2-8(C) The total ground floor area of all buildings shall not exceed thirty five
percent (35%) of the net site area. Minimum setback from any street line is not less than
one and one-half (1 ½) times the height of the principal building. Minimum setback from
interior side and rear lot lines is not less than the height of the principal building, plus one
additional foot for each five feet (5’) or part thereof that such building exceeds thirty five
feet (35’) in the aggregate horizontal dimension of the wall generally parallel to such side
or rear lot line. Building height shall conform with requirements contained within the city
airport master plan.

4. Development of the property is required to be in conformance with City code and
conditions for the CUP. It appears the property can be developed in conformance with the
requirements stipulated in City code with the approval of a variance.

The proposed development does not conform with the development standards of this section of
code and therefore, the applicant has requested a variance.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS

 Conformance with this section is required as the property is developed.

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS

General Regulations:
1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses

only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter,
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be
issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 6 of 7

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with
the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.

3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

1. The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed development is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan. The proposed conditional use permit meets Objectives 3 & 8 of the Land Use
Component of the Master Plan.

2. The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation
infrastructure and the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.

3. The proposed development conforms with the goals and objectives of the Redevelopment
Plan.

4. The site is suitable for the proposed use.
5. The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program.
6. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses.
7. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-8 PQP, Public-Quasi, Public with

the approval of the Condition Use Permit and variance 1-19 for street line setback
reduction.

8. Development under the proposed conditional use will not adversely impact natural
systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc.
or pose a danger to human health and safety.

9. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.
10. The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18, and 3-8 of

the Elko City Code with the approval of the variance for street line setback that is
associated with this CUP.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends APPROVAL of CUP 4-19 with the following conditions:



CUP 4-19
Elko County School District
APN: 001-191-001 & 004

Page 7 of 7

1. The permit is granted to the applicant Elko County School District.

2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use and to
the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning Commission may
approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another owner. Upon issuance of an
occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all zoning and site development
requirements imposed in connection with the permit have been satisfied, the conditional
use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the
maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with
other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

3. A variance for the College Ave. street line setback for the principal building is required to
be approved prior to issuing of a building permit. All conditions of VAR 1-19 to be met
prior to occupancy of the building.

4. Slope stabilization will be required on all slope areas.

5. A Parcel Map for the consolidation of the two parcels be approved and recorded prior to
issuing a building permit for the new building.

6. CUP 4-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after the
commencement of the construction of the new building.



















ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



1
1

t
h

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

6" W

12" W

K-2005KINGSTONC_LAVATORYVITREOUS CHINA
K-2005KINGSTONC_LAVATORYVITREOUS CHINA

VA
N

±11.84'

20
'

±21'

STANDARD CONCRETE FLATWORK WITH
RAMPING AS REQUIRED TO MEET ADA
REQUIREMENTS.

Material Legend:

Horizontal Scale: 

0 20' 40'

1" = 20'

Condition Use - Site Plan

SHEET NAME

DE
SI
G
N
W
ES
T

A
 R

 C
 H

 I
 T

 E
 C

 T
 S

 ,
  
P

 .
 A

 .

A

B

C

D

E

F

10987654321

10987654321

A

B

C

D

E

F

SHEET

 ©
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

E
S

IG
N

 W
E

S
T 

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

 P
.A

. D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

C
E

P
TS

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

N
O

T 
TO

 B
E

 R
E

U
S

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 P

E
R

M
IS

S
IO

N
 O

F 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T

w
w

w
.d

e
s
ig

n
w

e
s
tp

a
.c

o
m

DATE

05-13-2019

EL
K

O
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

SC
IE

N
C

E 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

EL
K

O
, N

EV
AD

A 
89

80
1

TB
D

 C
O

LL
EG

E 
AV

E.

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

BW

NH

REVISIONS

JOB NUMBER
19033

M
ic

ha
el

 T
ho

m
as

 5
/1

3/
20

19
 3

:0
6:

05
 P

M

M
E

R
I
D

I
A

N
,
 
I
D

A
H

O
 
 
●

 
 
P

U
L
L
M

A
N

,
 
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

K
E

N
N

E
W

I
C

K
,
 
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
 
●

 
 
O

N
T

A
R

I
O

,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

S
P

O
K

A
N

E
,
 
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR

T
L
G

 
P

N
:
1
1
9
0
6
2

EXISTING
MODULAR
BUILDING

PARCEL 001-191-004

PARCEL 001-191-001

NOTE: PARCELS TO
BE CONSOLIDATED
AS PART OF THIS
CONDITION USE
PERMIT / VARIANCE
PROCESS.

EXISTING
MODULAR
BUILDING

EXISTING
VOCATIONAL

BUILDING

EXISTING
MODULAR
BUILDING

EXISTING
BUILDING

PROPOSED
BUILDING

COLLEGE AVE.



Agenda Item # I.A.2 

Created on 5/28/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible action on Variance No. 1-19, filed by Elko 

County School District for a reduction of the required setback from any street line 

from 59.25’ to 20’, on the College Avenue Street Line, within a PQP (Public, Quasi-

public) Zoning District, and matters related thereto, FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: June 4, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The applicant is requesting a variance for the required 

street line setback for a new proposed structure. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 1-19 based on the facts, 

findings and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated May 18, 2019 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated May 18, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Elko County School District 

Mr. Casey Kelly  

850 Elm Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

ckelly@ecsdnv.net 

 

 

mailto:ckelly@ecsdnv.net




Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: May 18, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: June 4, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.2
APPLICATION NUMBER: Variance 1-19
APPLICANT: Elko County School District
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Elko High School Campus, New Science Building
RELATED APPLICATIONS: CUP 4-19, Parcel Map

A variance request from provisions under Section 3-2-8, requiring minimum setbacks from
any street line in a Public, Quasi-Public District. The minimum setback requirements from
any street line within the PQP District are 1 ½ times the building height for the principal
building.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7219



VAR 1-19
Elko County School District

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: APN 001-191-001 & 004 to be combined by parcel
map

PARCEL SIZE: 14.03 acres with recordation of parcel map to
combine parcels

EXISTING ZONING: PQP –Public, Quasi, Public

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Public

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed as Elko High School Campus

BACKGROUND:

1. The application for the variance was filed as required under City Code 3-2-8 (C).
2. The applicant has applied for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP 4-19) as required under

Elko City Code 3-2-8 (D).
3. The applicant is preparing a parcel map to combine both parcels into one parcel. To this

date, the application has been received by the Planning Department but the map has not
been submitted by the surveyor.

4. The property is located in the Redevelopment Area.
5. The properties are currently being served by City of Elko water and sewer and other non-

city utilities.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is surrounded by developed land to the north, south, east and west. The
campus is currently zoned PQP, Public, Quasi-Public with R- Single Family and Multiple Family
Residential to the south.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN SECTIONS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-8 Public, Quasi-Public Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-22 Variances

MASTER PLAN - Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Public.
2. PQP-Public, Quasi-Public zoning district is listed as a corresponding zoning district for

Public.
3. Master Plan states that Public land use designation is applied to community and public

and quasi-public uses such as those associated with government, non-profit, and utilities.
Uses of land must comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not
frustrate, the Master Plan’s goals and policies.

4. Objective 3: Strengthen, preserve, and promote the area around the City Park, City Hall,
and Convention Center as the civic heart of the community.



VAR 1-19
Elko County School District

Page 3 of 5

5. Objective 8: Ensure that new development does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The approval of the variance from the setback requirements stipulated for the PQP zoning district
is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

1. The property is located within the redevelopment area. The proposed use doesn’t provide
tax increment growth but does support several goals and objectives listed in the
Redevelopment Plan.

The proposed variance conforms to the Redevelopment Plan.

SECTION 3-2-8 PUBLIC, QUASI-PUBLIC DISTRICT:

1. The Minimum Setback From Any Street Line: Not less than one and one-half (11/2) times
the height of the principal building. Elko County School District is submitting a parcel
map for the consolidation of the two parcels, the setbacks would not have any interior
side yard or rear setback requirements as the new consolidated parcel will have street
frontage along all four sides.

a. The following setbacks are required, all horizontal measurements for setback
requirements are for the principal building on this parcel:

i. Street line setback requirements
1. 39.5’ building height
2. 59.25’ distance required to any street line
3. Greater than 400’ to Cedar Street property line
4. Greater than 300’ to 13th Street property line
5. Greater than 700’ to 9th Street property line
6. 20’ setback provided to College Avenue property line and

therefore the request for a variance would be for the reduction of
the street line setback requirement to College Avenue.

2. Maximum Lot Coverage: The total ground floor area of all buildings shall not exceed
thirty five percent (35%) of the net site area

a. It does not appear that with the addition of the new proposed building, the lot
coverage would exceed the 35% of the net site area requirement. The combined
buildings are approximately 141,839 sq. ft. with combined lot of 14.03 acres
which would be 23%.

Approval of Variance 1-19 in conjunction with approval of Parcel Map 1-19 is required to be in
conformance with Section 3-2-8 of City Code.

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES:

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include:
Application Requirements
1. There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration,

exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions
applying to the property under consideration.

 Application states: The property has moderate slope, which increases towards the
back of the building site.



VAR 1-19
Elko County School District

Page 4 of 5

 Application states: Additional land is available for development to the NE, but is
slated for a future auditorium.

 The special circumstance is directly related to the property as developed with
multiple principal buildings that don’t necessarily all meet the setback
requirements for the PQP zoning district.

 The proposed building site will not interfere with any possible site triangle for
traffic as it is not located at the intersection of any existing streets.

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the
property owner of reasonable use of property.

 Application states: Building is sized to accommodate specific program
requirements. Meeting 1.5 times building height setback would require demolition
of a majority of the parking lot to the north and complicate grading.

3. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the
same zoning district.

 Application states: Adjacent properties appear to have setbacks equal to ½
building height or less.

 Application states: Meeting required setback would substantially increase site
development costs and reduce available parking by approximately 18 spaces.

 Staff feels that the elimination of 18 required parking stalls would not be in the
best interest of the development.

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

 Application states: Setback will adequately separate building from street. As the
building located Northwest of residences across the street, building will not block
sunlight.

 Staff feels that the location of the building doesn’t create a visibility safety hazard
for traffic as the proposed location has distance separation from any intersection.

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification.

 Application states: Reduced setback will not affect ability to route utilities. Since
building pad is cut in to slope rather than following topography, scale will be
approximately equal to adjacent building.

 Application states: The variance request is for setback only and maintains the
current zoning with the proposed Public School use.

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.
 Application states: No natural resources will be affected.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed variance approval is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

2. The property is located within the redevelopment area and meets the goals and objectives
of the plan.

3. The property will have street frontage on all four sides with the consolidation of the two
parcels into one. Approval of VAR 1-19 is required to be in conformance with Elko City
Code 3-2-8.



VAR 1-19
Elko County School District

Page 5 of 5

4. The property as developed with the addition of the proposed building, does not exceed
the thirty five percent of the net site area lot coverage.

5. Approval of Variance 1-19 in conjunction with approval of the parcel map to consolidate
the two parcels into one will bring the proposed new development into conformance with
Section 3-2-8 of City Code.

6. The special circumstance is directly related to the property as it is developed as the only
high school in the City of Elko. It is somewhat land locked and with a growing
population, it requires expansion of its classroom facilities.

7. The special circumstance of a fully developed property with several legal non-
conforming issues. This circumstance does not generally apply to other properties in the
district.

7. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.

8. The granting of the variance is directly related to the zoning of the property and will not
impair the intent or purpose of the zoning and will not change the use of the land or
zoning classification.

9. The granting of the variance will not impair natural resources.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. Approval of CUP 4-19.
2. Parcel map 1-19 is to be approved, recorded and all conditions satisfied.





















ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



ELKO HIGH SCHOOL 
SCIENCE BUILDING
CONCEPTUAL ELEVATION

05-13-2019



1
1

t
h

 
S

T
R

E
E

T

6" W

12" W

K-2005KINGSTONC_LAVATORYVITREOUS CHINA
K-2005KINGSTONC_LAVATORYVITREOUS CHINA

VA
N

±11.84'

20
'

±21'

STANDARD CONCRETE FLATWORK WITH
RAMPING AS REQUIRED TO MEET ADA
REQUIREMENTS.

Material Legend:

Horizontal Scale: 

0 20' 40'

1" = 20'

Condition Use - Site Plan

SHEET NAME

DE
SI
G
N
W
ES
T

A
 R

 C
 H

 I
 T

 E
 C

 T
 S

 ,
  
P

 .
 A

 .

A

B

C

D

E

F

10987654321

10987654321

A

B

C

D

E

F

SHEET

 ©
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T 
D

E
S

IG
N

 W
E

S
T 

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

 P
.A

. D
E

S
IG

N
 C

O
N

C
E

P
TS

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

N
O

T 
TO

 B
E

 R
E

U
S

E
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 P

E
R

M
IS

S
IO

N
 O

F 
A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T

w
w

w
.d

e
s
ig

n
w

e
s
tp

a
.c

o
m

DATE

05-13-2019

EL
K

O
 H

IG
H

 S
C

H
O

O
L

SC
IE

N
C

E 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G

EL
K

O
, N

EV
AD

A 
89

80
1

TB
D

 C
O

LL
EG

E 
AV

E.

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

BW

NH

REVISIONS

JOB NUMBER
19033

M
ic

ha
el

 T
ho

m
as

 5
/1

3/
20

19
 3

:0
6:

05
 P

M

M
E

R
I
D

I
A

N
,
 
I
D

A
H

O
 
 
●

 
 
P

U
L
L
M

A
N

,
 
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

K
E

N
N

E
W

I
C

K
,
 
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

 
 
●

 
 
O

N
T

A
R

I
O

,
 
O

R
E

G
O

N

S
P

O
K

A
N

E
,
 
W

A
S

H
I
N

G
T

O
N

CONSTRUCTION

NOT FOR

T
L
G

 
P

N
:
1
1
9
0
6
2

EXISTING
MODULAR
BUILDING

PARCEL 001-191-004

PARCEL 001-191-001

NOTE: PARCELS TO
BE CONSOLIDATED
AS PART OF THIS
CONDITION USE
PERMIT / VARIANCE
PROCESS.

EXISTING
MODULAR
BUILDING

EXISTING
VOCATIONAL

BUILDING

EXISTING
MODULAR
BUILDING

EXISTING
BUILDING

PROPOSED
BUILDING

COLLEGE AVE.



Agenda Item # I.A.3 

Created on 5/28/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible action on Variance No. 2-19, filed by David and 

Juliane Ernst for a reduction of the required exterior side yard setback from 15’ to 

4.5’ and the required interior side yard setback from 5.5’ to 1.1’, for a residence in 

an R (Single family and multi-family residential) Zoning District, and matters 

related thereto, FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: June 4, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The applicant is requesting a variance for the required 

interior and exterior side yard setbacks for an existing structure. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 2-19 based on the facts, 

findings and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated May 21, 2019 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated May 21, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Jacques Errecart 

518 Commercial Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

jacquesg518@gmail.com 

 

Juliane & David Ernst 

15530 Donnybrook Ct 

Reno, NV 89511 

 

 

mailto:jacquesg518@gmail.com




Page 1 of 8

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: May 21, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: June 4, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.3
APPLICATION NUMBER: Variance 2-19
APPLICANT: David and Juliane Ernst
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 604 3rd St., Elko

A Variance request to reduce:
1. Interior side yard setback from 5.5’ to 1.1’
2. Exterior side yard setback from 12’ to 4.5’

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



VAR 2-19
David & Juliane Ernst

Page 2 of 8

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-224-009

PARCEL SIZE: 5,400 sq. ft.

EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential.

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential medium density

EXISTING LAND USE: Residential

BACKGROUND:
1. The applicant is the property owner.
2. The property was developed in the early 1900s.
3. The lot area is approximately 5,400 square feet. With the exception of 3-2-5(G)(2)b, it

meets the lot area requirements stipulated in code.
4. The property, as developed, is a legal non-conforming use with regard to current setback

requirements stipulated in code.
5. The applicant has applied for a building permit to add two small additions to the structure

for a more contemporary function while maintaining the historic qualities.  The additions
will not extend into the setbacks any more than the existing structure. The construction
of these additions into the currently required setbacks requires a variance.

6. The structure has been vacant and boarded up for several years.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
North, South, West and East: (R) Single and Multiple Family / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is currently developed with a single family use.
The property is located on a fairly steep portion of 3rd Street.  The result is a slight slope
in the front yard and a significant slope/berm along 3rd Street.
The property is located on the east side of 3rd Street near Pine Street with no current
ingress/egress. The applicant is proposing to provide a new driveway on 3rd Street into
the rear yard.
As defined in Elko City Code 3-2-2, the front yard setback would actually be the property
line adjacent to the dedicated alley so therefore, the Third Street side is the exterior side
yard.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan



VAR 2-19
David & Juliane Ernst

Page 3 of 8

 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-22 Variances
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Residential Medium Density.
2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential zoning district is listed as a

corresponding zoning district for Residential Medium Density.
3. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from 3rd Street.
2. Third Street is classified as a residential local.

The proposed variance is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is not
required.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property is located outside any capture zone for any City of Elko well.

The proposed use of the property does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

 No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building
or structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or
structurally altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this
subsection for the district in which it is located.

 No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:
a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in

this chapter;
c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or



VAR 2-19
David & Juliane Ernst

Page 4 of 8

d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open
spaces, than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the
provisions of this chapter.

 No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading
space, provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part
of a yard, open space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for
any other building.

 No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension
or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

Alteration of the structure requires conformance with the stipulation of the applicable zone
district. The structure, as located on the property does not conform to the exterior side yard and
interior side yard setbacks.

The property does not conform to Section 3-2-4 of city code. Approval of the variance
application is required to bring the property into conformance.

SECTION 3-2-5(G) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Minimum area stipulated for the district is five thousand five hundred (5,000) square feet
for an interior lot in an existing platted subdivision characterized by twenty five foot
(25’) wide lots and situation within a residential zoning district.

2. Minimum lot width stipulated for the district of sixty feet (60’), see ** below

3. Minimum lot depth stipulated for the district of one hundred feet (100’)

4. Minimum setbacks stipulated for the district are as follows:
Front Yard: A minimum setback of fifteen feet (15’) (20’) to a garage.
Rear Yard: A minimum setback of twenty feet (20’)
Interior Side: For single family, a minimum setback of five feet six inches (5.5’)
Exterior Side: For a residence in existence prior to November 25, 2003, twelve feet (12’)

** A single lot or parcel of land of record in the office of the county recorder as of the effective
date of the city subdivision ordinance (December 9, 1975), and which does not meet minimum
requirements for lot area, lot width or lot depth shall be considered a buildable lot for one single-
family dwelling, provided all other requirements of this chapter are satisfied. Therefore, this
variance is for setback consideration.

The structure encroaches into both stipulated side yard areas. Approval of the variance
application is required to bring the property into conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-5(G).

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS:

1. The current development does not meet requirement for off street parking; however, the
applicant is proposing two off-street parking spaces and a driveway access off of 3rd

Street into the rear yard.

The property does not conform to Section 3-2-17 of city code. Development of the required



VAR 2-19
David & Juliane Ernst

Page 5 of 8

parking areas will be required with building permit approval.

SECTION 3-2-22 VARIANCES:

B. Procedure: Any person requesting a variance by the planning commission shall include:

Application Requirements

1. There are special circumstances or features, i.e., unusual shape, configuration,
exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situations or conditions
applying to the property under consideration.

 Applicant states: The building is an existing, non-conforming structure
encroaching into setbacks required by current code. Because new construction is
planned within setbacks, a variance is requested to reduce side yard setbacks. The
building is likely over one hundred years old and was reportedly moved to the site
in the early 1900’s and placed on a foundation at a time when present day codes
were inapplicable or loosely enforced.

2. The special circumstance or extraordinary situation or condition results in exceptional
practical difficulties or exceptional undue hardships, and where the strict application of
the provision or requirement constitutes an abridgment of property right and deprives the
property owner of reasonable use of property.

 Applicant states: To achieve compliance, the building would have to be so heavily
modified that total demolition would be more cost-effective than saving any
portion of the structure, resulting in difficulty and hardship for the owners’
reasonable use of their property.

 The granting of a variance for the reduction of setbacks is necessary to bring the
property into compliance with the city zoning ordinance and thus allow the
issuance of a proper building permit and subsequent certificate of occupancy.

3. Such special circumstances or conditions do not apply generally to other properties in the
same zoning district.

Applicant states: The existing, non-conforming building was likely placed before
significant zoning regulations were enforced. In the attached assessor’s map, it
can be seen that this block is highly irregular relative to most adjacent and nearby
city blocks. This block has significant grading issues and may have been re-
parceled to better deal with slope issues. Most of the surrounding properties were
probably developed at a later time, on more level ground, and under closer
development scrutiny.

4. The granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity, nor be detrimental to the public interest, health, safety and
general welfare.



VAR 2-19
David & Juliane Ernst

Page 6 of 8

 This property and surrounding properties are historically well-established and the
neighborhood is appreciated and even prized as a historic part of the City of Elko.
This particular residence has been vacant for a number of years and is boarded
over to prevent vandalism.  The new owners have completed architectural plans to
add on to and modify the building for more contemporary functioning while
largely maintaining the historic qualities of both the interior and exterior.

5. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the
zoning ordinance or effect a change of land use or zoning classification.

 Applicant states: As the City Code is intended to enhance the general welfare of
its citizens, the granting of this variance will help eliminate a visual and
community nuisance by rehabilitating a blighted property. The property has
apparently been zoned R since zoning was first applied. No changes will occur.

6. The granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural resources.

 No natural resources will be affected by this project.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

1. This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS

1. The proposed variance is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan is consistent with existing land uses in the immediate vicinity.

2. The proposed variance is consistent with the Transportation Component of the Master
Plan.

3. The property is not located within the redevelopment area and consideration of the plan is
not required.

4. The proposed variance is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan.

5. The property does not conform to Section 3-2-4 of city code. Approval of the variance
application is required to bring the property into conformance with code.

6. A single lot or parcel of land of record in the office of the county recorder as of the
effective date of the city subdivision ordinance (December 9, 1975), and which does not
meet minimum requirements for lot area, lot width or lot depth shall be considered a
buildable lot for one single-family dwelling. Therefore, the minimum lot width of 60’ is
not required based on this exception.

7. The developed property does not meet side setback requirements stipulated in Section 3-
2-5(G) R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential. The structure encroaches into
both the interior side yard and exterior side yard setback areas. Approval of the variance
application is required to bring the property into conformance with code.



VAR 2-19
David & Juliane Ernst

Page 7 of 8

8. The property does not conform to Section 3-2-17 of city code. Development of the
required parking areas will be required as part of the building permit approval.

9. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the existing
structure has been in place for over 24 years and it appears the structure predates the
current setbacks stipulated in code and encroaches into the current stipulated setbacks.

10. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that this circumstance
prevents the applicant from obtaining building permits to modernize the structure
depriving the applicant of full use of the structure.

11. In accordance with section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the property has
unique circumstances based on that fact that the main structure already encroaches into
both side yard setback areas and there is some significant topographic issues, namely
slope, effecting the property.

12. Granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice to other
properties in the vicinity. This finding is based on the fact that the existing structure has
been in this same location for over 100 years and the small additions will not extend
beyond the existing exterior walls.

13. Granting of the variance will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning
ordinance. Single family is listed as a principal use in the underlying zone.

14. Granting of the variance will not impair natural resources.

15. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

CONDITIONS:

Planning Department:

1. Compliance with all staff recommendations.
2. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months.
3. Conformance to plans approved as a part of the variance.
4. Subject to review in two (2) years if determined necessary by the planning commission.

Building Department:

1. If approved the following shall apply:

 All walls within 5 feet of property line are required to have a fire-resistance
rating. This shall be a 1 hour rating tested in accordance with ASTM E 119 or UL
263 with exposure from both sides. The projection or roof overhang shall have a
fire-resistance rating of 1 hour on the underside if located greater than 2 feet or



VAR 2-19
David & Juliane Ernst

Page 8 of 8

less than 5 feet from the property line. Roof projections or overhangs are not
allowed within 2 feet of a property line. Openings less than 3 feet to property line
are not allowed. Openings up to 25% maximum of wall area from 3 feet to 5 feet
of property line are allowed. These requirements are as per Table R302.1(1) 2009
International Residential Code. And table R302.1 of Elko city amended building
codes.

Public Works Department:

1. Applicant must provide required public improvements along 3rd Street. This can be done
in conjunction with the building permit.



























































2 Planning April 2019

THE COMMISSIONER 

Law

How to Avoid a Conflict of Interest 

L
ET’S SAY YOU HAVE JUST been appointed to your local planning commission.  

You are now a public official who must abide by certain ethical standards—and, most 

important, avoid conflicts of interest. But what exactly is a conflict of interest? 

manager, who referred it to the village 

attorney. That was the end of the archi-

tect’s contact with the commission  

or the staff.

Conflict of interest is also a violation 

of ethical practices. It is unethical for 

public officials to use the knowledge and 

power of their position to further their 

private interests. Citizens have a right 

to expect fair and honest treatment in a 

transparent climate that supports high 

ethical standards. 

Avoiding even the appearance of 

a conflict of interest bolsters public 

confidence in government and in the 

planning process. 

In small communities, where only  

a few people step forward to serve  

on boards and commissions, often in  

a volunteer capacity, it can be challeng-

ing to establish and maintain bound-

aries with friends and neighbors who 

have special requests or opinions. But 

when citizens agree to join a board or 

commission, their first duty is to serve 

the public interest. 

If, for example, you are both a plan-

ning commissioner and a member of the 

board of directors of your homeowners 

association, there are times when you 

must recuse yourself. An example might 

be when the association is fighting the 

rezoning of a neighborhood property. 

That’s when you recuse yourself from 

the plan commission’s discussion, even 

leaving the room while discussion and 

voting are taking place. Above all, you do 

not cast a vote on the topic. 

The best path is to be mindful of 

pending actions before the commission 

and avoid even the appearance of a 

conflict of interest. For a more in-depth 

discussion of conflict of interest and other 

ethical issues, I recommend Everyday 

Ethics for Practicing Planners, by Carol 

D. Barrett, faicp (published by APA’s 

Planners Press in 2001) and The Ethical 

Planning Practitioner by Jerry Weitz, 

faicp (APA Planners Press 2015). 
—Dudley Onderdonk, FAICP

Onderdonk is past president of the Glencoe, 

Illinois, park district and a current member of  

the village plan commission.

The short answer: As a public official, 

you are prohibited from doing business in 

a private capacity that conflicts in any way 

with the board or commission on which 

you serve. Most states have conflict of 

interest laws that require public officials 

to steer clear of any involvement with 

work that is in any way related to their 

government activities or that could lead 

to legal entanglements. As the Illinois 

Supreme Court ruled in the 1976 case of 

Brown v. Kirk, “the faithful performance 

of official duties is best secured if a gov-

ernmental officer . . . is not called upon 

to make decisions that may advance or 

injure his individual interest.” 

The long answer

The general rule is that commissioners 

or board members should not have a 

personal or financial interest in any con-

tractual, work-related, or business matter 

put before the board or commission. This 

would include working for or personally 

benefiting from any board 

or commission action. 

A personal benefit could 

include a non-financial 

benefit like free office space 

or a zoning change. 

As a member of a 

planning commission or a 

zoning board of appeals (or 

similar body), you should 

review the rules with the 

department staff before 

accepting your new position. This does 

not mean you can no longer participate 

in other community activities, but it does 

mean your actions will be scrutinized. Not 

only will you be subject to federal and state 

conflict of interest laws, but you will also 

have a responsibility to represent the public 

by demonstrating integrity and fairness. 

Living conflict-free

In my more than 40 years of experience 

as a board member and a professional 

planner in various communities around 

the U.S., I have been very conscious of 

avoiding ethical violations. I currently hold 

elected office as a member 

of the independent park dis-

trict board in my suburban 

Chicago community. Before 

my election, my wife served 

on the board of a nonprofit 

group in the same suburb. 

Legally, she could have 

remained on the nonprofit’s 

board. However, she decided 

to step down in order to 

avoid even the appearance 

of a conflict of interest. 

Another example: Early in my 

planning career, I worked for another 

suburb. A local architect who held elective 

office on the village board lobbied staff 

members and planning commissioners to 

support a project his client was propos-

ing. I reported the matter to the village 

As a member 
of the 
commission, 
you must 
represent the 
public with 
integrity and 
fairness. 

Free office space or a zoning change could 
be a conflict of interest.

P
H
O
T
O
 B

Y
 I
S
T
O
C
K
/G

E
T
T
Y
 I
M
A
G
E
S
 P
L
U
S


	06-04-19 Agenda.pdf (p.1-3)
	05-07-2019 DRAFT Minutes.pdf (p.4-7)
	Item I.A.1. CUP 4-19 Elko County School District.pdf (p.8-28)
	Item I.A.2. Var 1-19 Elko County School District.pdf (p.29-49)
	Item I.A.3. Var 2-19 Ernst.pdf (p.50-71)
	Zoning Bulletin - 4-25-19.pdf (p.72-79)
	Zoning Bulletin - 5-10-19.pdf (p.80-87)
	Training

